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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Vikram Solar Limited {formerly known as ‘Vikram Solar Private Limited’)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vikram Solar Limited ( formerly known as
‘Vikram Solar Private Limited’ ) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013({“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies )Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 {(as amended) (“ Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs),as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 44 regarding payment of safeguard duty amounting to Rs. 6040.79 lacs during the year
2018-19 which has been considered as receivable in the financial statements since the matter is subjudice and
based on legal opinion obtained by the Company, the Company has an arguable case on merits, as more fully
described therein. Necessary adjustments in the financials will be made based upon the legal outcome of the
matter.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management & those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financlal performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, included in these
standalone financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on July 03, 2018.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books ;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account ;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these standalone financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(8) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 33 and 44to the standalone financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registfation No. 302@1%

Y 14
[ ] (ANURAG SINGHI)
t\ ~—Partner
f I| Membership No. 066274

UDIN -19066274AAAAAW2899
Place: Kolkata

Date: July 25, 2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to para no. 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our Independent
Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2019, we report that

(i) (@)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the company.

(i)  As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)  The Company has granted loans to two bodies corporate covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest. The
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the
repayment/receipts are regular. There is no overdue amount in respect of the above loans to the parties
listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans and
making investments. However, the Company has not provided any guarantees and securities.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from
the public and hence reporting under clause (v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a)  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods & Service Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

(b}  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods & Service Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31% March, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which have
not been deposited as on 31" March, 2019 on account of disputes are given below:

j
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Name of Statue " Nature of dues AmountinRs. | Period towhich | Forum where dispute
' ' Lakhs | @mountrelates | ispending
West Bengal Value Demand for Entry Tax 743.35 2012-2013 & 2013- Kolkata High Court
Added Tax Act,2003 14
Central Sales Tax, Act | Demand against non- 143.75 2013-14 & 2015-16 | Joint Commissioner of
1956 submission of Forms Commercial Taxes
(Appeals)
West Bengal Value Demand against non- 81.03 2012-13 &2015-16 | Joint Commissioner of
Added Tax act,2003 submission of Forms, Commercial Taxes
purchase tax, etc. {Appeals)
The Income Tax Disallowances of 345.18 2011-12 to 2013- Commissioner of
Act, 1961 expenses 14& 2015-16 Income Tax (Appeals)
Madhya Pradesh Demand against non- 135.14 2014-15 & 2015-16 Addl. Commissioner
Value added Tax submission of forms etc. Appeals
Act, 2002
Delhi Value Added Computation of 0.81 2013-14 Joint Commissioner
Tax Act,2004 TaxLiability & penalty Appels
Rajasthan Value Demand for Work 311.60 2015-16 Commercial Tax
Added Tax,2003 | Contact Tax officer i
Customs Act,1962 Demand for Safeguard 943.82 2018-19 Commissioner of
duty Custom (appeal)

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of loans and borrowings to banks. The Company has not issued any

debentures.

(ix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company

has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.
The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further public offer/debt instruments
during the year.

(x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid /

provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xit)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the order is not applicable.
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(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv})  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the order is not applicable
to the Company.

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or or persons connected with them and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi}  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

., For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accouptants

Firm’s Regjstration No. 302049E

J\ £y
N —H

“ | | (ANURAG sINGHI)

“— Partner

Membership No. 066274

\l _ UDIN -19066274AAAAAW2899

L

Place: Kolkata
Date: July 25, 2019
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as
‘Vikram Solar Private Limited’) (“the Company”) as of 31% March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the”
Guidance Note”)issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31" March, 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.

Cha r?d Accountarits
Firm’s Registration No. 302049E
| .’,n’

/'%" /
(ANURAG SINGHI)
““partner

Membership No. 066274

UDIN -19066274AAAAAW2899
Place: Kolkata

Date: July 25, 2019



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited’)

Balance Sheet as at 31March 2019
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capitat work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than above Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial asscts
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilitics (net)

Deferred income from grant

Other non current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred income from grant
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes

o ~N o v

10
I
12

13

14
15

16
18
19
34
22

20

21

21

17
18
34
22

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Singhi & Co. a
Chartered Accountant
gistration No.:

2049E

Anurag Singhi
Partner
Membership No: 066274

Place: Kolkata
Date: July 25, 2019

As at
31 March 2019

N =

As at
31 March 2018

32,271.01 29,058.69
991.83 4,521.94
1,259.32 851.65
192.54
1,268.46 1,206.88
156.27 150.33
4,938.86 4,856.45
528.68 524.36
41,606.97 41,170.30
20,614.09 19,597.78
54,111.75 52,845.94
1,075.79 262.01
8,687.94 7,213.46
818.52 653.52
11,380.53 4,850.51
1,567.12 548.58
4,912.68 3,640.59
1,03,168.42 89,612.39

1,44,775.39

1,30,782.69

2,792.50 2,792.50
33,461.31 29,939.73
36,253.81 32,732.23
20,357.30 26,343.20

453.78 256.38

1,319.93 719.05

1,808.65 1,951.65

2,428.99 -
26,368.65 29,270.28
35,559.75 40,156.31

958.27 -
38,595.11 15,910.71
4,640.06 5,034.96
26.16 16.05
143.74 143.69

2,229.84 7,518.46
82,152.94 68,780.18

1,08,521.58 98,050.46

1,44,775.39

1,30,782.69

f Ué) “ﬂ/@x/y

Gyanesh Chaudhary
Managing Director
DIN: 00060387

—-—

Rajendra Kumar Parakh
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vikram Solar Limited
CIN: U18100WB2005PLC106448

Hal ey Tt .9

Krjshna Kumar Maskara
Wholetime Director
DIN: 01677008

uA‘P GL'ITP“ Vi

Sudip Chatterjee
Company Secretary
Membership No: A18690
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Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited')
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Income
Revenue from operations 23 1,93,795.93 1,89,442.46
Other income 24 1,438.75 1,722.75
Total income 1,95,234.68 1,91,165.21
Expenses
Cost of material and services consumed 25 1,58,168.34 1,58,613.57
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 26 -2,247.87 293.90
Employee benefits expense 27 7,710.33 6,743.51
Finance costs 28 9,140.55 6,810.11
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 2,791.58 2,667.43
Other expenses 30 14,478.54 10,469.89
Total expenses 1,90,041.47 1,85,598.41
Profit before tax 5,193.21 5,566.80
Income tax expense
Current tax 1,120.00 950.00
Deferred tax (net of MAT credit entitlement) 19A 590.10 285.58
Total income tax expense 1,710.10 1,235.58
Profit for the year 3,483.11 4,331.22
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Net gain on fair value of Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI 55.24 254.00
Income tax effect -12.87 -58.60
42.37 195.40
Re-measurement of (losses) on defined benefit plans -5.99 -9.66
Income tax effect 2.09 3.26
-3.90 -6.40
Total Other Comprehensive income, net of taxes 38.47 189.00
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,521.58 4,520.22
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share [in Rs.] 31 12.47 15.51
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Singhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accou ts Vikram Solar Limited
Firm 'egistration(No}: 302049E CIN; U18100WB2005PLC106448
/

<

e 6062&_/,—()' NJL&:

Anurag Singhi Gyanesh Chaudhary ishna Kumar Maskara
Partner : Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership No: 066274 DIN: 00060387 DIN: 01677008

- lkJL P LI‘THZE\, \;
Place: Kolkata Rajendra Kumar Parakh Sudip Chatterjee J '

Date: July 25, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: A18690



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited')
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance costs
Interest income
Change in fair value of financial assets through FVTPL
Allowance far expected credit loss
Unrealised Foreign Currency
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for warranties
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, Plant and equipments
Operating Profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in financial and non financial liabilities
Decrease in financial and non financial assets
Cash generated / (used) in operations

Income tax paid
Net cash flows from / (used) in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, Capital
work in progress, intangible assets under development and
intangible assets

Proceeds from sale/ disposal of Property, Plant and equipments
Intercorporate loan given

Intercorporate loan recovered

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in Fixed Deposit (net)

Interest received

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flow from / (used) in financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ot the year (Reter Note 11)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

5,193.21 5,566.80
2,791.58 2,667.43
9,140.55 6,810.11
-786.75 -1,075.98
-1.34 -0.63
-97.59 -1,138.83
-459.27 -231.97
97.21 79.83
112.83 :
-0.58 7.20
15,989.85 12,683.96
-1,016.30 2,522.99
20,361.61 7,153.18
-8,248.60 -6,298.91
27,086.56 16,061.22
-2,138.54 -2,113.89
24,948.02 13,947.33
-3,129.75 -5,775.25
48.41 43.98
-5,354.21 -2,319.02
5,262.48 2,317.59
-5.00
-1,474.47 -1,494.16
775.15 1,004.99
3,877.39 -6,221.87
4,912.92 4,301.66
-11,114.29 -2,064.16
-4,596.56 -3,219.44
-9,458.92 -6,758.06
-20,256.85 -7,740.00
813.78 -14.54
262.01 276.55
1,075.79 262.01




Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited’)
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 01-Apr-18 Cash Flows Others 31-Mar-19
Short Term borrowings (Note 20) 40,156.31 -4,596.56 - 35,559.75
Non-current borrowings (including Current Maturities) (Note 16) 30,169.64 -6,201.37 87.09 24,055.36
Total liabilities from financing activities 70,325.95 -10,797.93 87.09 59,615.11
01-Apr-17 Cash Flows Others 31-Mar-18
Short Term borrowings (Note 20) 43,375.75 -3,219.44 > 40,156.31
Non-current borrowings (including Current Maturities) (Note 16) 27,932.14 2,237.50 - 30,169.64
Total liabilities from financing activities 71,307.89 -981.94 = 70,325.95

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind
AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co. [ b For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
hartered Accountants | Vikram Solar Limited
Firm ﬁlegiatration No.{ }UZDWE CIN: U18100WB2005PLC106448
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Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director
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Place: Kolkata Rajendra Kumar Parakh Sudip Chatterjee /
Date: July 25, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No: A18690



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited’)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
(A) Equity Share capital No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed
and fully paid
Opening 2,79,25,000 2,792.50 2,79,25,000 2,792.50
Add: changes during the year - - - =
Closing 2,79,25,000 2,792.50 2,79,25,000 2,792.50
(B) Other equity
Other
Reserves and surplus Comprehensive
Income
Investment in Total
Particulars Secun:tles Retal_ned Subsidiary at Fair
pramium earmngs Value through OCI
Balance as at 31 March 2017 4,272.47 20,469.34 677.70 25,419.51
Profit for the year 4,331.22 4,331.22
Net gain on fair value of Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI 195.40
(net of tax) : 195.40
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (net of tax) -6.40 -6.40
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4,272.47 24,794.16 873.10 29,939.73
Profit for the year - 3,483.11 3,483.11
Net gain on fair value of Equity Instruments designated at FVYTOCI
(net of tax) 42.37 42.37
Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans {net of tax) - -3.90 -3.90
Balance as at 31 March 2019 4,272.47 28,273.37 915.47 33,461.31

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm\Registration Np. 1302049
|/

| M

R U18100WB2005PLC106448
"" ("-VM ' g hos
\ A ,_ et 4
Anurag Singhi (\J

Gyanesh Chaudhary shna Kumarhaskara
Managing Director Wholetime Director
DIN: 00060387 DIN: 01677008

@

Rajendra Kumar Parakh
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vikram Solar Limited

Partner
Membership No: 066274

Place: Kolkata
Date: July 25, 2019

Sudip Chatterjee
Company Secretary
Membership No: A18690
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Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited')
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

1 General Information

Vikram Solar Limited (" The Company" } is a public timited company , incorporated under the provision of Companies Act, applicable in India . The
company was incorporated on December 2 ,2005 as private limited company namely Vikram Solar Pvt. Ltd and has been converted into a Pubtic
Limited Company with effect from August 22, 2017 . The Registered office of the Company is situated at The Chambers, 8th Floor, 1865, Rajdanga
Main Road, Kolkata - 700107.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Solar photovoltaic modules / systems. The manufacturing facilities are situated
at Falta Special Economic Zone (SEZ), West Bengal. The Company is also engaged into setting up of the Solar Power Plant / Systems and provides
operation and maintenance services.

These standalone financials statements were approved and autharised far issue with the resolution of the Board of Directors on July 25, 2019

2 Basis of Preparation and summary of Significant accounting policies

2.1

(a)

(b)

Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and read with [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS (Refer Note 2.13 for accounting policy on financial instruments)

Alt assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule (il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of operation and the time between the rendering of supply & services and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and
noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements have been reported in Rs. lakhs, except for information pertaining to number of shares and earnings per share
information.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and disclosures. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared and reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that may require a material adjustment to the reported amounts and disclosures.

(a) Employee benefit plans - Note 2.14 and 32

Post-employment benefits represents obligation that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project benefit obligations. Post-
employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over the employee’s approximate service period,
based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the company to make assumptions
regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of compensation increase and future mortality rates. Changes in these key assumptions can
have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations and benefit costs incurred.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables - Note 2.13.a and 10

The risk of delay collection of accounts receivable is primarily estimated based on prior experience with, and the past due status of debtors,
while large accounts are assessed individually based on factors that include ability to pay, bankruptcy and payment history. The assumptions
and estimates applied for determining the allowance of expected credit loss are reviewed periodically.

(c) Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plants and equipment - Note 2.2, 3 and 4

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at historical cost using straight-line method based on the estimated useful life, taking into
account their residual value. The asset’s residual value and useful life are based on the Company’s best estimates and reviewed, and adjusted
if required, at each Balance Sheet date taking into consideration the estimated usage of the assets, operating condition of the assets and
anticipated technological changes etc.

(d) Fair Value Measurements
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as "Vikram Solar Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.2

(e) Contingent Liabilities - Note 2.11 and 33

Contingent Liabilities covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is
often difficult to predict the final outcomes. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal
issues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular
case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, in the normat course of business, the Company consults with experts on
matters retated to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome is probabte and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

(f) Determination of percentage of completion

The Company uses the proportionate completion method for recognition of revenue, accounting for unbilled revenue / unearned revenue and
contract cost thereon for its turnkey contracts. The percentage of completion is measured by reference to the stage of the projecls and
contract determined based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract
costs. Use of the proportionate completion method requires the Company to estimate the efforts or costs incurred to date as a proportion of
the total efforts or cost to be incurred. Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the
contract cost incurred, the estimated total contract revenue and contract cost and the recoverability of the contracts. These estimates are
based on events existing at the end of each reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price (net of tax credits), borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met, commissioning
expenses, etc. up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Expenditure directly attributable to expansion projects is capitalized. Administrative, general overheads and other indirect expenditure
(including borrowing costs) incurred during the project period which are not related to the project nor are incidental thereto, are expensed
off when that are incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, ptant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capitat
advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management, which are
in line with the rates prescribed in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Property, plant and equipment Useful Life
Building 30 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8- 10 years
Office Equipment 3-5 years
Plant & Machinery 15 years
Electrical Installation 10 years
Computers & Accessories 3-6 years

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain items of tools, plant &
machinery and other handling equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule il to the
Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition. Depreciation on
sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as
appropriate.

The Company has adopted Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which requires identification and determination of separate useful life for
each major component of the property, plant and equipment, if they ha u;eful'_life that is materially different from that of the remaining
asset.



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as ‘Vikram Solar Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine if there is any indication of impairment based on
external or internal factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount which
represents the greater of the net selling price of assets and their ‘value in use’. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rates and risks specific to the asset.

Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets are initially measured at cost and subsequentty at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Amortization of [ntaneible assets

Intangibles arc amortized on a straight linc basis over the uscful lives as given below, which is based on the management cstimates.

Intangible assets Useful life

Computer Software 5 years
Trade Mark & Copyrights 3 years
Product Certifications 3 - 5years

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an impairment
indicator. The amortization expense and the gain or loss on disposal, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per requirement of Schedule lll of the
Act, unless otherwise stated.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Foreign Currency Transactions
The Company’s functional currency and reporting currency is the same i.e. Indian Rupee(INR).

Initial recognition of transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in reporting currency by the Company at spot rates at the date of
transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

Revenue Recognition

On March 28 , 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Indian Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) 115 Revenue from Contract with
Customers.

Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each
step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. Under the modified retrospective approach, there
were no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings at 1st April, 2018 in the Standalone Financial Statements. Also, the
application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Sale of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitle in exchange for those goods or services. The company has concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery.
Revenues from turnkey contracts, which are generally time bound fixed price contracts are recognised over the life of the contract using the
proportionate completion method with contract costs of determining the degree of completion. Foreseeable losses on such contracts are
recognised when probable.

Revenue on installation and commissioning contracts are recognised as per the terms of contract.

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognised pro rata over the period of the contract.



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited’)
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.8

@

(b)

2.9

2.10

Other Operating revenues
Exports entitlements are recognised when the right to receive such incentives as per the applicable terms is established, in respect of the
exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate realisation/ utilization of such incentives.

Other Income

Interest Income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted and to the extent there is no uncertainty in
receiving the claims.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year end date. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
year and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and tax credits only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences, losses and tax credits. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabte right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

In the situations where the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the income Tax Act, 1961, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is
recognised in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company's gross total income is
subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday
period is recognised in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Company restricts the recognition of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

L\
Current and deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Leases

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are operating lease. Operating lease payments, as per
terms of the agreement, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, material and
other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost includes purchase price, (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities), freight
inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition.

) -
Work in progress and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and n41 realisable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and direct
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overhead based on the normal/pperating capacity. Cost is determined on monthly weighted average
basis. ]



Vikram Solar Limited (formerly known as 'Vikram Solar Private Limited')
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

2.12

2.13

@

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet
date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions.

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations on sale of goods are recognised at the date of sale of relevant products, at the
Management best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Company's obligation. These estimates are established using historicat
information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future incidence
based on corrective actions on product failures. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise.

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement and Balance Sheet, Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or through profit or loss (FVTPL)),
and

b} those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses is either recorded in the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this depends on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this depends on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies the debt investments when and only when the
business model for managing those assets changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its assets carrying at amortized cost and FVOCI
debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade
receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

» The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to
one or more recipients.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

(b)

M

(i)

2.14

U]

(if)

Fair value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of method and assumptions that are based on market
conditions and risk existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value includes discounted cash flow analysis and
available quoted market prices. All method of assessing fair value result in general approximation of fair value and such value may never
actually be realised.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at fair value. The Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on
aforesaid investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the statement
of profit and loss. Investments in units of mutual funds are accounted for at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the cffective interest method. Fees paid on loan facilitics arc
recognised as transaction costs of the borrowings to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract - with the effect
that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other
host contract are separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host
contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Liabitities for short term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ service up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits payable in the
balance sheet.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan
Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for the period in
which the employee has rendered the service.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected
Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

(ii) Net interest expense or income

Compensated absence: The Company provides for the sick leave and encashment of earned leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules.
The employees are entitled to accumulate earned leave and sick leave subject to certain limits, for future utilization or encashment. The
liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected future payments to
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and ctianges:in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. )
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2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them
and there is a reasonable certainty that grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non- current
assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful life of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
cach reporting period with changes included in other income / other expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the derivate is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments and has been
identified as the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company. Refer note 37.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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3

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Building Plant & Furniture & Vehicles Office Electrical ._.o.o_m & no:.vcnmq.m & Total
Land Machinery Fixtures Equipment Installation Equipment Accessories

Gross Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2017 26.26 5,923.70 21,123.71 590.20 384.45 262.37 3,614.91 198.89 314.67 32,439.16
Additions - 34.04 332.93 5.87 138.78 34.51 1.43 42.24 108.32 698.12
Disposals / deductions s 34.41 - 0.57 66.38 11.39 - 0.93 113.68
As at March 31, 2018 26.26 5,923.33 21,456.64 595.50 456.85 285.49 3,616.34 241.13 422.06 33,023.60
Additions - 3,431.91 226.67 428.45 20.31 132.95 192.25 946.94 293.33 5,672.81
Disposals / deductions : 23.44 - 10.09 2.87 : 1.33 9.19 46.92
As at March 31, 2019 26.26 9,331.80 21,683.31 1,023.95 467.07 415.57 3,808.59 1,186.74 706.20 38,649.49
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2017 < 143.65 891.09 56.31 31.79 48.44 273.18 11.11 111.56 1,567.13
Charge for the year 234.22 1,473.11 66.35 55.17 70.72 432.64 22.69 105.38 2,460.28
Disposals / deductions 13.74 . 0.15 40.09 7.68 = = 0.84 62.50
As at March 31, 2018 - 364.13 2,364.20 122.51 46.87 111.48 705.82 33.80 216.10 3,964.91
Charge for the year - 232.91 1,485.66 69.09 69.03 65.87 375.75 33.02 102.97 2,434.30
Disposals / deductions - 9.43 - 5.20 0.44 - 0.10 5.56 20.73
As at March 31, 2019 - 587.61 3,849.86 191.60 110.70 176.91 1,081.57 66.72 313.51 6,378.48
Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018 26.26 5,559.20 19,092.44 472.99 409.98 174.01 2,910.52 207.33 205.96 29,058.69
As at March 31, 2019 26.26 8,744.19 17,833.45 832.35 356.37 238.66 2,727.02 1,120.02 392.69 32,271.01

(@) Property, Plant and Equipment are pledged against the borrowings obtained by the Company as explained in Note 16 and Note 20 to the Financial Statements.
Title deeds of the above freehold land and building are held in the name of the Company.

(b)

4
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4

Intangible assets

Gross Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2017
Additions

Disposals / deductions
As at March 31, 2018
Additions

Disposals / deductions
As at March 31, 2019

Amortisation

As at March 31, 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals / deductions
As at March 31, 2018
Charge for the year

Disposals / deductions
As at March 31, 2019

Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Computer  Trade Mark & Product Total
Software Copyrights  Certifications

399.21 4.12 561.60 964.93
98.79 38.92 157.32 295.03
498.00 43.04 718.92 1,259.96
446.55 38.03 281.16 765.74
1.49 . 1.49
943.06 81.07 1,000.08 2,024.21
73.29 2.79 125.08 201.16
78.64 1.95 126.56 207.15
151.93 4.74 251.64 408.31
133.55 5.33 218.40 357.28
0.70 - s 0.70
284,78 10,07 470.04 764.89
346.07 38.30 467.28 851.65
658.28 71.00 530.04 1,259.32

>

N
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5 Investments

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in equity shares, fully paid up (Unquoted, at fair value through OCl)

VP Utilities & Services Pvt. Ltd. [10,000 (31 March 2018 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

each)] 1.00 1.00

VSL Ventures Pvt Ltd [50000 shares (31 March 2018 :Nil shares) of Rs. 10 each] 5.00 .

Vikram Solar Gmbh [100% shares (31 March 2018 :100% shares)] 648.05 707.00

Vikram Solar Pte. Ltd. [30000 shares (31 March 2018 : 30000 shares) of USD 1 each] 20.89

Vikram Solar US Inc. [16 shares( 31 March 2018 : 16 shares) of USD 1000 each] 576.30 483.00
1,251.24 1,191.00

Investment in mutual funds (Unquoted, at Fair Value through Profit and Loss)

150,000 units (31 March 2018 150,000 units) of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund

Series-7 (Growth) 17.22 15.88
1,268.46 1,206.88

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,268.46 1,206.88

5.1 Refer Note 38 and 39 for information about fair value measurements.
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9.1

Loans (at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Non Current

Security deposits

Current
Loan to subsidiaries*
Security deposits

* There is no signifcant increase in Credit risk in respect of loan to
subsisidiary

Other Financial Assets (at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good

Non Current

Amount due from Grantor*

Current

Amount due from Grantor*

Claims & Refunds Receivable**
Export Incentive Receivable

Interest Receivable

Capital subsidy receivable $

Unbilled Revenue

Receivables from sale of investments

* Refer Note No. 35 E
** Refer Note No. 44
$ Refer Note No. 34

Other assets

Unsecured, considered good
Non Current

Capital Advances
Prepaid expenses

Current

Advance to Suppliers

Advance to Staff

Balance with Revenue authorities
Prepaid Expenses

Inventories

(At Lower of cost and net realisable value )
Raw material

Work in progress

Finished goods

Store and spares parts including packing material

Inventories are hypothecated against borrowing. Refer Note. 20&
16.

/.
[~

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

156.27 150.33
156.27 150.33
588.52 466.00
230.00 187.52
818.52 653.52
4,938.86 4,856.45
4,938.86 4,856.45
688.99 688.99
7,231.96 1,259.54
930.61 461.45
202.18 190.58
2,239.36 2,238.57
76.05 -
11.38 11.38
11,380.53 4,850.51
496.43 411.52
32.25 112.84
528.68 524.36
1,859.18 2,788.08
32.13 102.46
2,027.69 335.71
993.68 414.34
4,912.68 3,640.59
8,593.58 9,969.48
2,414.69 1,581.59
8,597.89 7,183.12
1,007.93 863.59
20,614.09 19,597.78
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10

10.1

10.2

11

12

13

Trade receivables (at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (including against trade
recetvable which have signiticant credit risk)

Trade receivables are hypothecated against borrowing. Refer Note.
20 & 16.

Expected credit loss allowances

Particulars
Balances at the beginning of the year

Movement in Allowance for expected credit loss
Balances at the end of the year

Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

On current / cash credit accounts
Cash in hand

Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with banks as margin money

Current tax assets

Income tax (net of provisions Rs.8,320.00 lakhs (Previous
Year(Rs.7,200 lakhs))

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

54,936.17 53,767.95
342.76 342.76
-1,167.18 -1,264.77
54,111.75 52,845.94
1,264.77 2,403.60
-97.59 -1,138.83
1,167.18 1,264.77
1,007.98 234.71
67.81 27.30
1,075.79 262.01
8,687.94 7,213.46
8,687.94 7,213.46
1,567.12 548.58
1,567.12 548.58
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As at As at 31
31 March 2019 March 2018
14 Equity share capital
The Company has only one class of equity share capital having a par value of
Rs. 10 per share, referred to herein as equity shares.
Authorized
33,000,000 shares (31 March 2018: 33,000,000) equity Shares of Rs.10 each 3,300.00 3,300.00
3,300.00 3,300.00
lssued, subscribed and paid up
27,925,000 shares(31 March 2018: 27,925,000) equity Shares ot Rs.10 each 2,792.50 2,792.50
2,792.50 2,792.50
(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,79,25,000 2,792.50 2,79,25,000 2,792.50
Add: Changes during the year B -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 2,79,25,000 2,792.50 2,79,25,000 2,792.50
(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annuat
General Meeting.
(c ) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Number of % of holding in Number of % of holding in
shares the class shares the class
a) Vikram Capital Management Ltd. 55,62,000 19.92% 55,62,000 19.92%
b) Vikram Nuvotech India Pvt. Ltd.* 53,32,500 19.10% 53,32,500 19.10%
¢) Monolink Trexim (P) Ltd. 45,53,400 16.31% 45,18,900 16.18%
* Formerly known as Pioneer Syntex Pvt. Ltd.
As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declaration received from
shareholders, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
As at As at 31
15 Other equity 31 March 2019 March 2018
(A) Securities premium 4,272.47 4,272.47
Securities premium reserve is created when shares are issued at premium. The
reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
4,272.47 4,272.47
(B) Retained Earnings
Opening balance 24,794.16 20,469.34
Add: Net profit for the current year 3,483.11 4,331.22
Less: Re-measurement loss on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) 3.90 6.40
Closing balance 28,273.37 24,794.16
(C) Other Comprehensive Income
It represents the cumulative gains/ (losses) arising on the revaluation of
investments in subsidiaries which are measured at fair value through OCI.
Opening balance 873.10 677.70
Add: Net gain on investments in equity share accounted at Fair Value (net of
tax) 42.37 195.40
Closing balance 915.47 873.10
33,461.31 29,939.73
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As at As at 31
31 March 2019 March 2018

16 Non - current borrowings (at amortised cost)

Secured Loans

Term Loan from Banks 19,130.82 18,798.90
Buyers Credit for Capital Goods from Banks 3,816.16
Less: Current Maturities of Term Loan -3,686.44 -3,783.48
15,444.38 18,831.58

Hire Purchase Loans 11.62 54.58
Less : Current Maturities of Hire Purchase Loans -11.62 -42.96
11.62

Unsecured Loans
From Bodies Corporate and others 4,912.92 7,500.00

20,357.30 26,343.20

Nature of security

Term Loans aggregating to Rs. 256.26 lakhs are secured by first charge on
property, plant and equipments (except specifically charged assets) of
company’s selar PV madule manufacturing unit (Unit 1) at Falta SF7, Snuth 24
Parganas.

Term Loans aggregating to Rs. 15,384.91 lakhs are secured by first charge on
property, plant and equipments (except specifically charged assets) of
company'’s solar PV module manufacturing unit (Unit 1) at Falta SEZ, South 24
Parganas.

Term Loan amounting to Rs. 2,893.98 lakhs are secured by first charge on other
financial assets i.e. 10 MW Solar Power Plant at village Kosuvaripalli, Chittoor
District, Andhra Pradesh.

The above loans are also secured by second charge on current assets of the
company and personal guarantees of some of the Directors of the company.

Term loan of Rs. 595.67 lakhs is secured by hypothecation of property situated
at Kolkata.

Terms of repayment

Unit -1

Term Loan of Rs. 96.26 lakhs is repayable in further 3 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs. 29 lakhs and balance payable ending in March 2020. Term
Loan of Rs. 160.00 lakhs is repayable in further 3 equal quarterly instalments of
Rs. 42 lakhs and balance payable ending in March 2020.

Unit -1l
Term Loan aggregating to Rs. 5,349.73 lakhs is repayable in 28 equal quarterly
instalments starting from December 2016. Term Loan aggregating to Rs.

10,035.18 lakhs is repayable in 28 equal quarterly instalments starting from
June 2018.

10 MW Solar Power Plant

Term loan aggregating to Rs. 2,893.98 is repayable in further 50 equal
instalments of Rs. 62.50 lakhs and balance on December, 2030.

Others

Term loan aggregating to Rs. 595.67 lakhs is repayable in 180 equal instalments
of Rs. 6.46 lakhs ending in March 2032.

Term Loan (Unsecured) aggregating to Rs. 4,912.92 lakhs is repayable after 3
years from the date of First reimbursement i.e. 27th March, 2019 or 60 days
prior before the expiry of an unconditional irrevocable bank guarantee issued
against the aforesaid loan.

Hire Purchase Loans

Hire Purchase Loans amounting to Rs. 11.62 lakhs are secured by hypothecation
of respective Equipment and are repayable in equal monthly instalments over a
period of 1 year.
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17

18

18.A

19

19A

198

Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Current

Current Maturities of Term Loans

Current Maturities of Hire Purchase Loans
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings
Creditors for Others

Creditor for Capital Goods

Provisions

Non Current

Provision for warranties

Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity*

Current

Provision for warranties

Provision for compensated absences
Provision for Gratuity*

* Refer Note 32

Provision for warranties

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Provision made during the year

Amount incurred / utilized during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Provision for warranty claims represents present value of the management's best estimate of the
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Company's obligations for
warranties under sale of products. The estimates has been made on the basis of historical trends
and may vary as a result of new materials, altered manufacturing processes or other events
affecting product quality.

Further, company’s product namely Solar PY Modules carries performance warranty of up to 25 -
27 years from the date of supply. A fair estimate of future liability that may arise on this account
is not ascertainable and hence not provided.

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

(a) Deferred tax liability on account of:

(i) Property, plant and equipments and Intangible Assets

(ii) Fair Value of investment through Other Comprehensive Income
Total

(b) Deferred tax asset on account of:
(i) Items allowable for tax purpose on payments/ adjustment
(ii) Minimum Alternative Tax credit
(iii) Unabsorbed Depreciation
(iv) Allowance for expected credit loss
(v) Others
Total

Net Deferred tax liabilities [a-b]

Details of treatment of Deferred tax

Opening Deferred Tax liabilities / (assets)

Add : Deferred tax during the year routed through Profit and Loss

Add : Minimum Alternative Tax

Add : Deferred tax during the year routed through Other comprehensive income
Closing Deferred Tax liabilities / (assets)

Reconciliation of statutory rate of tax and effective rate of tax:

Profit before income tax

Enacted income tax rate in India

Current tax provision on Profit before income tax at enacted income tax rate in India
Adjustments:

Tax on Allowances / incentives allowed under Income Tax act

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Other items

As at As at 31
31 March 2019 March 2018
3,686.44 3,783.48
11.62 42.96
139.74 274.64
371.43 463.15
430.83 470 73
4,640.06 5,034.96
105.48
127.48 94.88
220.82 3 161.50
453.78 256.38
7.35 -
10.66 9.46
8.15 6.59
26.16 16.05
112.83 -
112.83 -
7,765.03 7,770.04
277.26 261.83
8,042.29 8,031.87
128.28 92.02
5,833.00 4,713.00
228.83 2,005.21
407.86 427.23
124.39 75.36
6,722.36 7,312.82
1,319.93 719.05
719.05 378.13
1,710.10 1,235.58
-1,120.00 -950.00
10.78 55.34
1,319.93 719.05
5,193.21 5,566.80
34.94% 34.61%
1,814.71 1,926.67
- -707.79
-1.92 -7.20
-102.69 23.90
1,710.10 1,235.58
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20

21

22

Short -term borrowings (at amortised cost)
Working Capital Loans- Secured
Cash Credit, Buyers Credit & Packing Credit from Bank

Working capital loan are secured by first charge on current assets of the company and second
charge on fixed assets (except specifically charged assets) of company’s solar PV module
manufacturing unfts (Unit | & Uit II) aL Falla SEZ, 5Suuth 24 Parganas and also by personal
guarantee of some of the directors of the company.

Trade payables (at amortized cost)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Disclosure for micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) The Principal amount and interest due there on remaining unpaid to suppliers under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- Principal

- Interest

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of payment made to suppliers beyond the
appointed day during the year

- Principal
- Interest

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- Principal

- Interest

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance as deductible expenditure under Section 23

Other current liabilities
Non Current
Advance from customers

Current

Advance from customers
Unearned Revenue
Statutory dues

As at As at 31
31 March 2019 March 2018
35,559.75 40,156.31
35,559.75 40,156.31

958.27 :
38,595.11 15,910.71
39,553.38 15,910.71

954.22 -

4.05 -

4.05

2,428.99 -

2,428.99 -
1,788.46 5,569.35
244.67 1,804.10
196.71 145.01
2,229.84 7,518.46
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For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

23 Revenue from operations
Sale of Goods” 1,79,315.92 1,79,706.65
Sale of Services” 13,521.53 9,417.01
Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentive 958.48 318.80
1,93,795.93 1,89,442.46
* Refer Note 35
24 Other income
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
- on fixed deposits 467.75 479.93
- on service concession agreement (Refer Note 35E) 436.51 447 .48
- on others 319.01 596.05
Change in fair value of financial assets through FVTPL 1.34 0.63
Government Grant related to property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 34) 143.74 143.23
Profit on Sale of property, plant and equipments 0.58 -
Miscellaneous income 69.82 55.43
1,438.75 1,722.75
25 Cost of materials and services
Cost of materials and services 1,58,168.34 1,58,613.57
1,58,168.34 1,58,613.57
26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Finished goods 7,183.12 7,755.71
- Work-in-progress 1,581.59 1,302.90
8,764.71 9,058.61
Less: Inventories at the end of the year
- Finished goods 8,597.89 7,183.12
- Work-in-progress 2,414.69 1,581.59
11,012.58 8,764.71
Net decrease/ (increase) in inventory -2,247.87 293.90
27 Employee benefits expense ¥
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 7,010.72 6,082.35
Gratuity 63.41 54.52
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 269.75 230.50
Staff welfare expenses 366.45 376.14
7,710.33 6,743.51
28 Finance costs
Interest Expenses 7,819.51 5,864.20
Other borrowing costs 1,417.05 988.31
Less: Capitalized during the year -96.01 -42.39
9,140.55 6,810.11
29 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation (Refer note 3) 2,434.30 2,460.28
Amortization (Refer note 4) 357.28 207.15
2,791.58 2,667.43
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30

30.1

Other expenses
Consumption of packing materials and stores & spares
Freight and Warehousing
Power and Fuel
Insurance
Rent
Rates and taxes
Repairs and maintenance
-Building
-Plant and Machinery
-Others
Professional Fees
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 30.1 below)
Travelling and conveyance
Marketing and selling Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure
Loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for expected credit loss
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Security and other manpower services
Provision for warranties
Miscellaneous expenses

Break-up of remuneration to auditors (exclusive of taxes):
Statutory audit

Tax audit

Others*

*includes Rs. 0.84 lakhs to erstwhile auditors

30.2 Details of CSR expenditure

®
(i)

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount spent during the year for purposes other than construction
/acquisition of assets in cash

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

2,873.80 2,556.47
3,191.02 2,909.87
874.18 845.69
351.80 186.24
414.02 317.93
93.15 93.88
11.06 5.96
87.98 109.36
481.67 331.52
1,029.65 979.70
19.84 17.37
1,182.49 1,146.50
771.28 818.86
5.50 20.81
0.00 7.20
-97.59 -1,138.83
1,414.79 259.96
1,110.00 793.30
112.83 .
551.07 208.10
14,478.54 10,469.89
19.00 13.00
- 4.00
0.84 0.37
19.84 17.37
146.12 139.96
5.50 20.81
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(B)

ii)

fif)

Earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to equity shareholders 3,483.11 4,331.22
Weighted average no. of equity shares 2,79,25,000 2,79,25,000
Basic and diluted Earning per share (EPS) [in Rs.] 12.47 15.51

Note: The Company does not have any outstanding equity instruments which are dilutive.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has provident fund plans for all the employees of the company. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for
employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary subject to statutory limits. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed
and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution
plan is Rs. 178.96 Lakhs (31 March 2018- Rs. 149.39 Lakhs).

Defined benefit plans
(a) Leave Obligations

The Company provides for the encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate
leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment. The liability is provided based on the number days of unutilised leave at each balance
sheet date on the basis of year-end actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. The scheme is unfunded.

Based on past experience and in keeping with Company’s practice, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full amount of
accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months and accordingly the total year end provision determined on actuarial valuation,
as aforesaid is classified between current and non current.

(b) Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on
terms not less favourable than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is unfunded.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and amounts
recognised in the Balance Sheet for Post - retirement benefits plan.

Employee’s gratuity fund

Expehses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Current service cost 58.02 37.82
Past service cost -7.22 8.76
Interest cost 12.61 7.94
Total 63.41 54,52

Expenses recognised in OCI
Actuarial losses

- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - -6.33
- (Gain)/loss from experience adjustments 5.99 15.99
Total expense 5.99 9.66

Expenses for the above mentioned employee benefits is have been disclosed in Note 27 under head "Salaries, wages, bonus and other
allowances”. Actuarial loss of INR 5.99 lakhs (31 March 2018: INR 9.66 lakhs) is included in other comprehensive income.

Net Liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 228,97 168.09

Changes in the present value of defined benefit ebligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 168.09 109.84
Current service cost 58.02 37.82
Past service cost -7.22 8.76
Interest cost 12.61 7.94
Actuarial loss on obligations 5.99 9.66
Benefits paid -8.52 -5.93

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 228.97 168.09
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Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum)

Rate of increase in Salary
Mortality table

Attrition rate

Risk Exposures

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

7.70%
5.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)
{Modified) Ult.

2.00%

7.70%
5.00%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)
(Modified) Uit.

2.00%

1) Interest Rate Risk : The defined benefit obligation colculated uses a discount rate based on gavernment hands. If bond yields fall, the

defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

ii) Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

iii) Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the
combination of salary inutease, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial
analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long service employee.

Impact of change in significant assumptions on defined benefit obligations is shown below:

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

1% increase 1% decrease
-29.48 36.30
34.50 -28.70

Discount rate
Rate of increase in salary

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (without discounting)

Expected benefit payments for the year ending
Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and nor later than 5 years
More than 5 years

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(i) Contingent Liabilities
Ctaims against the company not acknowledged as debt
Income tax demand
VAT, CST and Entry tax
Safeguard Duty on imports

These cases are pending at various forums with the respective authorities. Qutflow, if any, arising
out of the claims would depend upon the outcome of the decision of the appellate authorities and

the Company's right for future appears before judiciary.

The Company does hot expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent liabilities.

(ii) Capital and other commitments
Unexecuted capital contracts to be provided

1% increase

-20.73
23.67

1% decrease
25.27
-19.96

Employee’s gratuity fund

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

8.46
62.13
247.60

As at
31st March 2019

6.84
47.27
217.82

As at
31st March 2018

377.62 372.79
1,415.69 937.38
1,020.35 .

2,813.66 1,310.17
1,861.56 1,257.23
1,861.56 1,257.23

(ifi) The Company has subscribed to the Memorandum of Association of Vikram Solar Cleantech Private Ltd. for 50,000 equity shares (Face

Value of Rs. 10/- each) pending investment thereof.
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Deferred Income from Grant

The Company had applied for Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme(M-SiPS) in earlier years, wherein the Company is entitled to capital
subsidy on eligible investments in SEZ. The incentive is provided on reimbursement basis. During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the
Company had obtained approval from the competent approving authority for capital subsidy form Government of India under M-SIPS scheme.
Grant receivable has been recognised by the Company as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the related assets.

31st March 2019 31st March 2018

Opening Neferred Income from Grant 2.095,34 -
Recognised during the year 0.79 2,238.57
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss -143 74 -143 23
Closing Deferred Income from Grant 1,952.39 2,095.34
Non-Current Deferred income from Grant 1,808.65 1,951.65
Current Deferred income from Grant 143.74 143.69
35 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
A Details of revenue with customer
Sale of Goods 1,79,315.92 1,79,706.65
Sale of Services 13,521.53 9,417.01
Total Revenue as per Contracted Price 1,92,837.45 1,89,123.67
B The following table provides details of Company revenue from contract with customer
Timing of revenue recognition
- Goods transferred at a point in time 81,902.09 1,24,537.03
- Goods / Services transferred over time 1,10,935.36 64,586.64
Total 1,92,837.45 1,89,123.67
India 1,70,945.37 1,72,353.33
Outside India 21,892.08 16,770.34
Total 1,92,837.45 1,89,123.67
€ Transaction Price - Remaining Performance Obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end
of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical
expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as
the revenue recognised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.
D The following table provides information about contract asset and contract
[fabitities from contract with customers:
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
(1) Contract Assets and liabilities as at 1st April (excluding trade receivable and
trade payable)
- Advances from Customers as at April 1 4,180.69 2,619.35
- Unbilled revenue as at April 1 - =
- Unearned revenue as at April 1 1,804.10 1,775.00
(ii) Revenue recognized during the year from contract 1,09,131.26 62,811.64
(i) Revenue recognized during the year that was included in the contract liability
at April 1 (excluding Advance from Customer) 1,804.10 1,775.00
(iv) Contract Assets and liabilities as at March 31 (excluding trade receivable and
trade payable)
- Advances from Customers as at March 31 2,494.47 4,180.69
- Unbilled revenue as at March 31 76.05 -
- Unearned revenue as at March 31 244.67 1,804.10
Note: Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the
entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance .
Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognized as and when the
performance obligation is satisfied.
E The Company had entered into Power Purchase Agreement with Tirumala Tirupati Devasthanams (Grantor) for installation and operation of

Solar power plant under Build Own Operate and Transfer (BOOT) system, under which the Company shall be entitled to income from sale of
power generated from such plant at an agreed per unit rate. The Company shall transfer the plant to the grantor at the end of the operation
period. Above arrangement classifies as service concession arrangement under Ind AS 115 and hence has been accounted for as financial asset
model.

Key details of the agreement are given below:

Construction period 1 year

Operation period 21 years

Capacity of Solar Power Plant 10 MW

Revenue and profits recognised towards construction services: s 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
(i) Revenue recognised for the financial year A 117.54 256.14

(i

Profit recognised for the financial year ';' 5.60 12.20
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Related Party Disclosures

Names of related parties and description of relationship:

Where control exists

% of holdings

The Company has following subsidiaries and step down subsidiaries :-

As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2018

Place of
Incorporation

Vikram Solar GmbH Germany
Solarcode Vikram Management GmbH Germany
Solarcode Vikram Solarkraftwerk 1 GmbH & Co KG** Germany
VSL Ventures Pvt Ltd India
VP Utilities & Services Pvt. Ltd. india
Vikram Solar US inc. u.S
Vikram Solar Pte. Ltd. u.s

** Subsidiary of Vikram Solar GMBH

Others

Key Management Personnel

Shri. Hari Krishna Chaudhary - Chairman

Shri. Anil Chaudhary - Vice Chairman

Shri. Gyanesh Chaudhary - Managing Director

Mr. Krishna Kumar Maskara - Whole time Director

Mr. Probir Roy - Independent Director (w.e.f 27th March, 2019)
Mr. Joginder Pal Dua - Independent Director

Mr. Vikram Swarup - Independent Director

Ms. Mamta Binani (ceased to be director w.e.f 11th July, 2018)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Smt. Urmila Chaudhary (wife of Shri Hari Krishna Chaudhary)

Company in respect of which KMP has significant influence
Yashvi Art Foundation India
Vikram Solar Energy Solutions GmbH Germany

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
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36.2 Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business during the year:

@)

(U]

(i)

(ifi)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(®)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(i)

(i)

(d)

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(U]

(e)

Subsidiary and step down subsidiary Companies

Sale of goods/services
Vikram Solar US Inc
VP Utilities & Services Pvt Ltd

Purchase of goods/services
VP utilities & Services Pvt Ltd

Sales commission
Vikram Solar GmbH

Loan given

VP Utilities & Services Pvt Ltd
Vikram Solar US Inc

Vikram Solar Pte. 1 td.

Loan recovered

VP Utilities & Services Pvt Ltd
Vikram Solar US Inc

Vikram Solar GmbH

Interest Income

VP Utilities & Services Pvt Ltd
Vikram Solar GmbH

Vikram Solar Pte. Ltd.

Investment
VSL Ventures Pvt Ltd

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and relatives

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel
Shri. Gyanesh Chaudhary
Mr. Krishna Kumar Maskara

Sitting fees paid to Key Management Personnel
Ms. Mamta Binani
Mr. Joginder Pal Dua
Mr. Probir Roy
Mr. Vikram Swarup

Rent paid
Smt. Urmila Chaudhary

Company in respect of which KMP has significant influence

Sale of goods/services
Vikram Solar Energy Solutions GmbH

Corpus Donation
Yashvi Art Foundation

Balances outstanding at the end of the year:
Subsidiary and step down subsidiary Companies

Trade Receivable

Trade advance
Commission payable

Loan receivable
Investments - Refer Note 5

Company in respect of which KMP has significant influence

Trade Receivable

Terms and conditions of transactions with refated parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash and cash equivalent.

For the year
ended 31 March

For the year
ended 31 March

2019 2018
14,194.37 37.75
. 0.13
¥ £.53
288.07 270.56
414.21 286.83
39.17
13.0?7
254.59 198.25
67.89 -
139.34
15.85 1.55
24.40
6.40
5.00
228.08 226.24
58.79 58.26
0.25 0.90
2.75 1.05
0.25 .
3.25 0.60
6.00 6.00
2,156.70
5.00
As at As at

31 March, 2019

31 March, 2018

859.77
963.64

22.48
588.53

510.14

1,084.67

466.00
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Segment reporting

37.A Operating Segment

37.B

il)

37.C
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The Company is a manufacturer of solar modules as well as in the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) in the solar energy
market.

Based on the 'management approach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of the various performance indicators by the overall business segment.

As the allocation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with evaluation into individual
categories to understand the reasons for variations, no separate segments have been identified. Accordingly no additional disclosure has been
made for the segmental revenie, segmental results and the segmental assets & liabilities.

Geographical Segment
The Company’s Operating Facilities are located in India.
particulars 31st March 31st March
2019 2018

Segment Revenue:
India 1,70,945.37 1,72,353.33
Rest of the world 21,892.08 16,770.34
Total 1,92,837.45 1,89,123.67
The Carrying Amount of Non-Current Operating Assets by location of Assets:
India 35,243.38 34,956.64
Rest of the world N .
Total 35,243.38 34,956.64
Major Customers
The Company derives approx 57 % (31 March 2018 : 29%) of its revenue from Public sector/ Government
undertakings.
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Class wise fair value of the Company's financial assets:
Investments (un-quoted) in mutual funds 17.22 15.88
Investment in subsidiaries 1,251.24 1,191.00

1,268.46 1,206.88

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
Quantitative disclosures fair Date of in active observable unobservable
value measurement valuation markets inputs inputs
hierarchy for assets: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
31/03/2019 17.22 - 1,251.24
31/03/2018 15.88 - 1,191.00

Valuation process :
The main level 3 inputs for unquoted equity shares of the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:

Discount rates are determined using a Government yield to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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(A)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's financial liabilities comprise of long term borrowings, short term borrowings, capital creditors and trade & other payables. The
main purpose of this financial liabilities is for financing the Company's operation. The Company's financial assets includes trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investment in subsidiaries and deposits.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market conditions.
Market risk broadly comprises Lhiee types uf tisks nanely Luriency risk, interest rate risk and price risk (for commoditics). The above risks may
affect the Company’s income and expenses and / or value of its investments. The Company’s exposure to and management of these risks are
explained below-

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to the Company’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in
interest rate - Total Effect on profit
Year 50 basis point borrowings before tax
31-Mar-19 Increase 59,615.11 -298.08
Decrease 298.08
31-Mar-18 Increase 70,325.95 351.63
Decrease 351.63

(ii) Foreign currency risk

The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates as it undertakes transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. Consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within
approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts. The Company enters into derivative contracts to hedge the exchange
rate risk arising on the export of modules and import of cells/ modules and capital goods.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variabies held constant. The
impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to
foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

CHF Euro usbD
Receivable / Receivable / Receivable / Effect on profit
(Payable) (Payable) (Payable) before tax
Year Change in rate (%) (net) (net) (net)
31-Mar-19 Increase by 1% 266.98 771.30 -25,802.65 -247.64
Decrease by 1% 247.64
31-Mar-18 Increase by 1% -124.69 -68.10 -27,143.99 -273.37

Decrease by 1% 273.37
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(iif) Price Risk :
Commoadity price risk results from changes in market prices for raw materials, mainly Solar cells which forms the significant portion of
Company’s cost of sales. Significant movement in raw material costs could have an adverse effect on results of Company’s operations.

The Company endeavours to reduce such risks by maintaining inventory at optimum level through a highly probable sales forecast. Raw
materials are purchased based on the sales order book and forecast of sales. The Company also endeavours to offset the effects of increases in
raw material costs through price increases in its sales, productivity improvement and other cost reduction efforts.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities mainly trade receivables.

Credil Risk Management

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk
assessment. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an
individual basis for each major customer. In addition, small customers are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment
collectively.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company's principal
sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, long term borrowings, working capital borrowings, the cash flow that is generated from
operations and proceeds of maturing financial assets. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:

Less than 1 11to 5 years More than 5 Total
year years
As at 31 March 2019
Short term borrowings 35,559.75 - - 35,559.75
Long-term borrowings 3,698.06 18,963.32 1,393.98 24,055.36
Trade payables 39,553.38 - . 39,553.38
Other financial tiability 942.00 - - 942.00
79,753.19 18,963.32 1,393.98 1,00,110.50
As at 31 March 2018
Short term borrowings 40,156.31 - - 40,156.31
Long-term borrowings 3,826.44 10,026.07 16,317.13 30,169.64
Trade payables 15,910.72 - - 15,910.72
Other financial liability 1,208.52 - - 1,208.52
61,101.99 10,026.07 16,317.13 87,445.19

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, long term and short term borrowings, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
maximize the shareholder value and to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company's management reviews the capital structure of the Company on a need basis when planning any cxpansions and growth
strategies.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of cost of capital. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The following table summaries the capital of the Company:

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Particulars

Long Term Borrowing (including current maturities of long term debt) 24,055.36 30,169.65
Short Term Borrowing 35,559.75 40,156.31
Less: Cash and cash equivalents -1,075.79 -262.01
Total Borrowing (Net) 58,539.32 70,063.95
Total equity 36,253.81 32,732.23
Total Capital (Equity+Net Debt) 94,793.13 1,02,796.18
Debt to equity ratio 1.61 2.14

No changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018 y

The Company has provided interest bearing (which is not lower thaﬁ"pr_,evaﬂ*ihg yield of related Government security close to the tenure of the
respective loans) unsecured loans repayable on demand during the ar aggregating to Rs. 5,353.21 lakhs to certain companies for temporary
financial assistance. Year-end balance of aforesaid loan is Rs, 249.75i{akhs (31 March 2018 : Rs. 199.17 lakhs).
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Standards (including amendments) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the following new Ind AS and amendments to existing issued Ind
AS which the Company has not applied as effective from 1st April, 2019:

Ind AS 116 - Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on 30th March, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to
the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of ‘low-
value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the undertying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term,
a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and
finance leases.

Ind AS 116, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2019, requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.

Transition to Ind AS 116

The Company plans to adopt Ind AS 116 with modified retrospectively approach with cumulative effect of applying the standard,
recognised on the date of initial applicable (1st April, 2019). The Company will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17.

The Company will therefore not apply the standard to contracts that were not previousty identified as containing a lease applying Ind
AS 17.

The Company will elect to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms ends within 12
months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value.

The Company intends to adopt this standard. However, adoption of this standard is not likely to have a significant impact in its
Financial Statements.

Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service cost
and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the remeasurement. In
addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements
regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale,
that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. The Company does not expect any impact from this amendment.
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The Director General of Trade Remedies (DGTR) had recommended imposition of safeguard duty on “Solar Cells whether or not
assembled in modules or panels” imported from China and Malaysia on July 16, 2018 based on their final findings for a period of two
years. Certain Solar Companies had filed writ petition before the Hon,ble Orissa High Court against the recommendation of DGTR and
Hon,ble Orissa High court has passed an interim order on July 23, 2018 whereby Government of India (GOl) was directed not to issue
any notification in this regard. However, GOI issued notification dated July 30, 2018 confirming the imposition of safeguard duty
ignoring the interim order passed by the Hon,ble Orissa High Court. In the meanwhile, the Company also preferred a Writ Petition
before the Hon,ble High Court of Orissa challenging the recommendation of DGTR and the notification dated July 30, 2018 issued by
GOI. Pursuant to the above, GOl issued instruction dated August 13, 2018 directing all the Commissionerates not to insist on payment
of safeguard duty and to assess the import of solar cells on a provisional basis. Subsequently, GOl has filed a SLP before the Hon,ble
Supreme Court of India against the interim order of Orissa High Court.

The Hon,ble Supreme court has stayed the interim order passed by the Hon,ble Orissa High Court vide its order dated September 10,
2018. After this order, GOI issued instruction dated September 13, 2018 for withdrawal of earlier instruction dated August 13,2018
and for finalisation of provisionally assessed bill of entries.

The Company has paid Rs. 6040.79 lakhs during the year 2018-19 towards above safeguard duty on clearances for stock
transfers/ongoing EPC contracts. The above amount has been considered as refundable and disclosed as receivable in the Financial
Statements since the matter is pending before the Hon,ble Orissa High Court as well as the Hon,ble Supreme Court and based on legal
opinion obtained by the Company, the Company has an arguable case on merits. However, in case the matter is decided against the
solar Companies, the Company is entitle to receive Rs. 3704.84 lakhs from a EPC customer based on representation made by the
Company to said customer whose acceptance is pending as on date.

Further, no safeguard duty was paid by the Company on clearances from SEZ from July 30, 2018 to September 13, 2018 as stated
above and the clearances were made on undertaking furnished by the Company. Based on legal opinion obtained by the Company, no
safe guard duty is payable on clearances from SEZ during the said period since goods were cleared out of imported materials lying in
stock as on the date of which the safeguard duty was imposed i.e. July 30, 2018.

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 17: Leases is as under 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

Operating Lease Payments recognised in the Statement of 414.02 317.93
Profit and Loss

The total of future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

For a period not later than one year 188.76 188.76
For a period later than one year and not later than five years 173.55 362.31
For a period later than five years - -

General Description of Leasing Agreements:

(i} Lease Assets: Godowns, Offices, Residential Flats and Others
(ii} At the expiry of lease terms, the Company has an option to return the assets or extend the term by giving notice in writing.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform current year's classification.
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